
 

 

Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG 

 
 
 

EXECUTIVE 
AGENDA 

 
Venue:  This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore  
    will not take place in a physical location  
Date:   Thursday, 18th February, 2021 
Time:   10.00 am 
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby         Tel: 01946 598328 

 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on  
26 January 2021  

1 - 6 

3. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:   

4. Written Questions from Members of the Public   

5. Reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

6. Forward Plan  7 - 12 

7. Health and Safety Half-Yearly Report  13 - 28 

8. Corporate Performance Update for Quarter 3 of 2020-21  29 - 36 

9. Finance Report for Quarter 3 of 2020-21  To Follow 

10. Draft Budget  To Follow 

11. Date and Time of Next Meeting:   

 The next scheduled meeting of the Executive will be held on 
Tuesday 16 March 2021 at 10:00am. This will be a virtual 
meeting. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



NOTES 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers 
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items. If you have a 
query on the meeting arrangements or if you require a copy of this document 
in a different format (large print, braille, audio tape, electronic formats such 
as CD or in a different language) please contact the relevant officer as shown 
below.  
 
Call-In 
Most of the decisions taken by the Executive can be ‘called in’, in accordance 
with Council’s Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision notice being 
published. It is expected that the decision notice will be published on 23 
February 2021. Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in any 
decision is 5.00pm on Tuesday 2nd March 2021.  
 
 
Contacts:  Direct Dial: 01946 598328 

  E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk 
   Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG 

Notice of Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers 
by the Executive on Tuesday, 26 January 2021 
 
 
NOTES: The deadline for calling in any of these decisions is 5.00 pm on  
Friday 5 February 2021 
 
A copy of the Executive agenda setting out all the reports has previously been circulated to all 
Members of the Council. 
 
Officers are asked to read this Decision Notice, as it is the responsibility of the Officer named in 
the Action Column to ensure that the appropriate action is taken. 
 
If you require further information on any issue please contact the Officer named in the right hand 
column.  For general information or to obtain a copy of any documentation please contact 
Member Services. 
 
Present: Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors David Moore, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt. 
 
Officers Present: Pat Graham, Chief Executive; Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services 
and Commercial Strategy, Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources, Clinton Boyce, Solicitor; 
Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer; Rose Blaney, Democratic Services Officer and Rob 
Ward, Nuclear Sector Manager. 
 
Also Present: Councillors John Kane, Felicity Wilson, Gwynneth Everett and  
Michael McVeigh. 
 
EXE 
20/203 

Apologies for Absence 

 There were no apologies for absence. 
 
EXE 
20/204 

Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 8 December 2020. 

 RESOLVED – That the Statements of Decisions made on the 8th December 2020 were 
agreed as a correct record and will be signed by the Mayor as soon as practicable. 

 
EXE 
20/205 

Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

 No declarations of interest were made by the Executive Members present. 
 

EXE 
20/206 

 Written Questions from Members of the Public 

 No questions had been received from Members of the Public. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Item 
No. 

Decision CLT Lead 

EXE 
20/207 

REPORTS FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
To receive any recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  
 
The Chair and Deputy Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee provided 
an update from the meetings held on 26 November 2020 and  
17 December 2020.  
The appointment of Rose Blaney as Scrutiny Officer was welcomed. 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED - The update from the Deputy Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be noted. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
Comments received from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are taken 
into account when Executive decisions are made.  
 
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any) 
 
None 

 

N\A 

  

Item 
No. 

Decision CLT Lead 

EXE 
20/208 

FORWARD PLAN 
 
To consider the Mayor’s Executive Forward Plan. 

 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED - that the forward plan be agreed, subject to: 

a) The amendment to the dates of Executive and Council in February 
2021, and 

b) The Copeland Community Lottery being delayed until 2022. 
 
Reason for Decision 
 
The Local Authority (Executive Arrangements (Access to information 
(England) Regulations 2012 requires a forward plan to be prepared in 
respect of key decisions.  The work plan is good practice. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any) 
 
N/A 
 

N\A 

 

Page 2



 

Item 
No. 

Decision CLT Lead 

EXE 
20/209 

COASTAL COMMUNITY FOREST 
 
This report introduced the concept of community forests and the 

opportunity for Cumbria to develop a plan for a Coastal Community 

Forest, which would support the Council’s new Climate Policy and 

sustainability framework set out in the Copeland Vision 2040. 

Executive were asked to support the submission of an Expression of 

Interest for the Coastal Community Forest in Cumbria to be considered as 

one of the next three community forests in England. 

Decision 
 
RESOLVED: that  

a) the report be noted, and 
b) the submission of an Expression of Interest for the Coastal 

Community Forest to be considered as one of the next three 
community forests in England be supported. 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
The specific benefits of a Coastal Community Forest in Cumbria would be 
shaped in response to local need and long term aspirations. 
 
Benefits associated with community forests generally include: 
• Creation of healthy, inspiring and resilient places for communities        
             and nature to live side by side 
• Connection of urban populations with the wider  
             landscape, for leisure and recreation 
• Helping communities to respond and adapt to climate change 
• Responsiveness to societal and policy developments – meeting the 
             community’s long-term wellbeing and environmental needs 
• Trees meet the community’s needs for a safe, attractive place, 
             good health, economic development and connection with thriving  
             nature 
• Flood resilience and management 
• Biodiversity enhancement 
• Community participation in place-shaping 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any) 
 
No other options were considered. 
 

N\A 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



Item 
No. 

Decision CLT Lead 

EXE 
20/210 

PUBLIC SECTOR DECARBONISATION SCHEME FUNDING SUBMISSION 
 
This report provided an update to Executive on the work undertaken to 

date to explore energy efficiency and low carbon energy generation 

opportunities across the Council’s property and estates. 

As a result of this work, an opportunity had arisen to submit an 

application to the Government’s Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme. 

This paper made Executive aware of the scheme that has been proposed 

and for which a funding bid had been submitted. 

 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – that  

1. the report be noted and the project outlined in the report be 
             supported in principle; 
 

2. a recommendation be made to Council that the project is 
supported and that, subject to recommendation 3, that the  
Council accepts any grant from the Department for Business,  
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)/Salix, to fund the project and 
that the Council’s capital budget and programme be adjusted  

             accordingly; and 
 

3. That recommendation 2 be conditional on the Solicitor, the 
Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Elected Mayor  
and the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, being 
satisfied that (a) any BEIS grant conditions are acceptable and that 
financial regulation E5.12 is otherwise satisfied; (b) that a                 
satisfactory variation to the leisure management agreement and 
the swimming pool lease, insofar as is necessary, is entered into 
with Greenwich Leisure Limited to enable the project to proceed; 
and (c) that any other land issues arising the project involving third 
parties are satisfactorily resolved. 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
Securing funding from the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme would 
support implementation of the Council’s carbon reduction efforts. 
The proposed decarbonisation scheme would deliver: 
• A near net zero carbon swimming pool for the Borough 
• A pioneering exemplar project from which to build and 
             demonstrate best practice 
 
Deliverables would include: 
• A building (historically heated by gas) that is no longer 
             reliant on fossil fuel heating 
• Significantly reduced carbon footprint for the site 

N\A 

Page 4



• A focal point for the Council’s ongoing ambitions to address  
 carbon emissions 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any) 
 
No other options were considered. 
 

 
 

Item 
No. 

Decision CLT Lead 

EXE 
20/211 

CLEATOR MOOR AND MILLOM TOWN DEALS 
 
Executive was asked to note the Town Investment Plans of Cleator Moor 
and Millom for submission by 29th January 2021.   
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – that  
 

a) the core themes of the Town Investment Plans and 
      related Town Fund as agreed by the Cleator Moor and  
      Millom Town Deal Boards, be noted. 

 
b) the submission to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government of both Town Investment Plans, with final sign off 
delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with Mayor, the 
Council’s Section 151 Officer and the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
be agreed. 

 
c) Council be recommended to support the Town Investment Plans 

and to note its future role in accepting the accountable body role. 
 

d) a further report be made to the Executive once the outcome of the 
Town Investment Plans are known and dealing with any heads of 
terms/memorandum of understanding received and associated 
issues; and,  

 
e) the remaining funding available under the Pride of Place scheme is 

allocated across the four towns in Copeland with the allocations 
used to support investment into derelict and vacant buildings, 
noting that this will provide match funding to the Town 
Investment Plans for Cleator Moor and Millom be agreed. 

 
Reason for Decision 
 

Copeland Borough Council has been invited by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to 
develop Town Investment Plans to secure funding for Cleator 
Moor and Millom from the Towns Fund, as part of the 
Governments agenda to drive sustainable economic 

N\A 

Page 5



regeneration of towns for long-term economic and 
productivity growth.   
 

       The benefit to Copeland residents from the development of  
       an evidenced case for investment in both Cleator Moor and  
       Millom is potential significant funding into the town (up to  
       £25 million in each town) through Government, with support  
       from public and private sector partners.  The regeneration of  
       our town centres will bring improved economic prosperity  
       with a knock-on increase in jobs, new businesses and visitors  
       to the area.   
       The Executive acknowledged the hard work of the Town 
       Boards, their Chairs and Officers in preparing the Town  
       Investment Plans, particularly during this Covid emergency  
       and the restrictions that imposed. 

 
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any) 
 
No other options were considered. 
 

 
 
EXE 
20/212 

Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

 It was noted that the next meeting of the Executive would be held on the re-arranged 
date of Thursday 18th February 2021 at 10:00am. This will be a virtual meeting. 

 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 3.45 pm  
 

 
Mayor 

Page 6



  

  

Executive 18 February 2021 

MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN  

  

This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 

Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period.  

  

A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 

performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 

(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 

effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 

constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 

the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 

permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough.  

  

A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 

An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 

reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 

notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred.  

  

Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 

Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt. 

  

Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 

containing confidential or exempt information.  

  

 

   

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 6



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2020/21 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 3 

Executive Executive 

18 February 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

Yes No 

2020/21 Finance 

Report –  

Quarter 3  

 

Executive   Executive 

18 February 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Health and Safety 

Monitoring Half 

Yearly Report 

Executive Executive 

18 February 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive 

 

No No 

Draft Budget 

(incl Amendments to 

Discretionary Relief 

Policy, Discount and 

Premium Policy, Pay 

Policy Statement) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Council 

 

Executive 

18 February 2021 

 

OSC 

19 February 2021 

 

Council  

23 February 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources 

 

Yes No 

Independent 

Remuneration Panel 

Report 

Council Council 

23 February 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

P
age 8



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

Budget  

(incl Amendments to 

Discretionary Relief 

Policy, Discount and 

Premium Policy, Pay 

Policy Statement) 

 

Council 

 

Council (Prov) 

2 March 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources 

 

Yes No 

Constitution 

Refresh/Update 

 

Council Council 

2 March 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

Constitution –  

Financial Regulations 

Council Council 

2 March 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

Yes No 

Moss Bay Enterprise 

Trust 

Executive Executive 

16 March 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive  

 

Yes No 

2020/21 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 4 

Executive Executive 

May 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

Yes No 

P
age 9



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2020/21 Finance 

Report – Quarter 4  

 

Executive   Executive 

May 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Outside Bodies 

Annual Report 

Council OSC 

May 2021 

 

Council  

June 2021 

 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

No No 

Annual Scrutiny 

Report 

Council OSC 

May 2021 

 

Council  

June 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

No No 

Health and Safety 

Monitoring Half 

Yearly Report 

1st Jan – 30th Jun ‘21 

Executive Executive 

July 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive 

 

No No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 1 

Executive Executive 

August 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

P
age 10



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 1  

 

Executive   Executive 

August 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 2 

Executive Executive 

November 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 2  

 

Executive   Executive 

November 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Copeland 

Community Lottery 

Executive Executive 

January 2022 

Commercial Services 

Cllr Steven Morgan 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 3 

Executive Executive 

February 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

P
age 11



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 3  

 

Executive   Executive 

February 2022 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

       

  P
age 12



 

Executive 18/02/2021 

Health and Safety Half-Yearly Report      

 

LEAD MEMBER: Councilor David Moore Portfolio Holder Nuclear 
and Corporate Services  

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham Chief Executive 
REPORT AUTHOR: Katie Longworth Occupational Health and Safety 

Advisor  

Claire Dunn Human Resources Manager  

 

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND 
RESIDENTS? 
 
All Council activities have the potential to impact on Copeland Residents 

therefore, it is important that all activities are managed so they are carried 

out in a safe manner. 

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE? 
 
To keep the Executive informed on our approach, actions and issues with 
regards to Health and Safety of Employees and the public across our estate. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Executive notes the Bi-Annual report on Health and Safety and the 
associated actions arising from it. 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1  As an employer, Copeland Borough Council (CBC) is required to 

comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and regulations 

made under that Act. The Council must have arrangements in place 

to protect employees and those affected by any work undertaking 

provided by the Council. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 

1.2  The Health and Safety Bi-Annual Report provides information on the 

arrangements for managing, planning, measuring performance and 

auditing and reviewing the arrangements for identified risks within 

the Authority. 

2. DISCUSSION 
 
The Health and Safety Bi-Annual Q2 Report covers the period to  
31 December 2020: 

1. Review of Policies 

2. Training and Information 

3. Measuring, reviewing and auditing performance 

4. Communication and Consultation 

5. COVID-19 Update 

 

2.1.1 Review of Policies  

 

Within this period the Council has reviewed their: 

 

 Health and Safety Strategy which has been updated to incorporate 

the area of health and wellbeing; 

 The Health and Safety Corporate Policy Manual has also been 

updated an is available on the health and safety intranet; 

 The COVID-19 Workplace Policy and Guide has been updated in 

accordance with changes in advice from central government and the 

NHS. 

 

2.1.2 Training and Information 

 

Face to face training has been interrupted under COVID but the planned 

IOSH working safely, 3 day qualified first aid courses, paediatric and manual 

handling courses were able to be delivered under Covid guidance. 

We will continue to roll out compulsory manual handling training for 

operational departments (parks, waste and enforcement) when current 

restrictions are lifted. 

Page 14



 

 

Training Delivered 
by 

Date 

3 Delegates IOSH Working 
Safely 

GEN2 12TH October 2020 

5 Delegates 3 Day First Aid at 
Work 

SHN 
Training 

12-14th October 2020 

2 Delegates Emergency 
Paediatric First Aid 

SHN 
Training 

15th December 2020 

10 Delegates Manual Handling  SHN 
Training 

17th December 2020 

 

2.1.3 Measuring, reviewing and auditing performance 

 

The Internal Audit recommendations have been addressed with one 

outstanding action of amending relevant job profiles to include the 

statement of ensuring risk assessment, evaluation and compliance under 

the health and safety management system.  These are being reviewed 

under the Councils Performance Management Process - Aim Higher. In 

addition, development of the department inductions process are being 

developed within selected departments as per the audit recommendations. 

The intent is that this becomes corporate practice as per ISO 45001 

recommended standards. 

 

Corporate Safety and Investigation work is an-going process of 

management of Health and Safety; there was 1 investigation (detailed 

below logged as near miss 134) and 3 inspections carried out in accordance 

with HSE guidelines. One at Distington Walled Garden (Lodge and 

outbuildings) on behalf of Properties and Estates as part of their asset 

management, the second inspection was conducted at Moresby Archives 

(ground floor) on the request of the Governance and Data Protection 

Officer and finally the third was conducted at Beck Green as a follow up 

Page 15



 

inspection on behalf of Properties and Estates. All reports were delivered 

back to the responsible departments with remedial actions. 

 

GLL during this quarter were able to provide detailed COVID workplace risk 

assessments, method statements and cleaning procedures for the public 

swimming pool and gym facilities. UK Lockdowns mean all three GLL sites 

are currently closed to the public.   

 

Near Miss Reporting 

 

Near Miss: 11 near misses were reported from October 2020 to December 

2020 date. This is a decrease from Q1 of 42.10% out of those near misses 7 

of the recommended actions have been actioned with learning taking place 

in the form of tool box talks, additional staff communications and 

equipment being replaced.  Please note one near miss generated an 

investigation below.  The 5 near misses below remain open and still 

pending for improvement actions to be taken.  

 

DATE DEPARTMENT NEAR MISS IMPROVING PERFORMANCE 

03/11/2020 Was Parks &  

Open Spaces, 

now 

Bereavement 

Services 

136 Foul 

smelling vapors 

and gas while 

on new Grave. 

Operative was 

left feeling 

unwell and 

reported to 

Contracts 

Manager 

It is within the procedures for 

Grave Digging that foul smelling 

odors should be reported 

immediately. OHSA responded to 

Department Manager and 

advised personal gas monitors to 

be supplied to the Gravedigger 

and Assistant.  

 

Bereavement Services Manager 

has agreed Operatives should be 

provided with personal monitors. 

The near miss will remain 

Page 16



 

pending until orders have been 

confirmed.  

20/11/2020 The Beacon 

Museum 

138 Staff 

member unable 

to use final exit 

door because 

thumb-turn 

locks were out 

of reach and 

user has 

physical 

disabilities. 

This is considered a risk due staff 

and visitors unfamiliar with the 

area may become trapped during 

an evacuation or fire.  

 

Purchase orders have been 

issued for the installation of a 

key pad and push button set-up. 

 

OHSA advised that the final exit 

door should be linked with the 

fire system to allow this to 

become unlocked during an 

evacuation. 

 

Alterations and arrangements 

that involve the final exit or fire 

doors across the estate must be 

consulted on by both Properties 

& Estates and Occupational 

Health and Safety Advisor before 

final decisions are made. This is 

to prevent breaches in the 

Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 

Order 2005 before they become 

an issue after an incident or near 

miss has occurred. 

21/11/2020 The Beacon 

Museum Haig 

Pit Stores 

139 Exposure to 

unknown 

substances 

While opening a box that had 

varied contents stored loosely 

and recorded as vague entries a 

Page 17



 

during archiving 

activities by 

Museum 

Curator and 

two visitor 

hosts this was 

also given an 

incident 

number of 

INC10908 on 

Pentana to 

record the 

improvement 

process.  

small wooden box was opened 

that had within it a white 

powered substance that had 

come from a broken test tube 

marked with the label poison. 

 

Visitor Hosts and the Curator 

both resealed the box and left 

the stores and reported it 

accordingly. 

 

Curator Policy, risk assessments 

and Safe systems of work are to 

be put into place along with site 

induction and training. Until this 

has been actioned, the stores at 

Haig remain under prohibition of 

entry to anyone aside from 

maintenance and contractor 

works whom currently are risk 

assessed. 

08/12/2020 Waste 145  Verbal 

abuse 

Operative was threatened with 

physical violence at the next 

scheduled collection by a 

resident who had excessive 

waste but who had not arranged 

this to be collected. 

 

OHSA has contacted waste 

department manager and CC 

waste team leaders. Suggested 

external communications on zero 

Page 18



 

tolerance stance from the 

Council and abuse towards our 

waste teams will result in a 

retraction of services as has 

happened in the past. 

 

All employees should not be 

subject to verbal or physical 

abuse while conducting Council 

Business. Copeland Borough 

Council are a zero tolerance 

organisation.  

29/10/2020 Parks & Open 

Spaces 

INVESTIGATION 

Near miss 134 - 

Reports of 

fumes smelled 

inside vehicle 

cab of the New 

Holland Blue 

Tractor PX17 

AWF (suspected 

malfunction of 

DPF, emission 

system or regen 

system) 

Occupational Health and Safety 

advisor raised concerns to Parks 

Contracts Supervisor and Parks 

Manager in regards to the near 

miss and Occupational Health 

and Safety Advisor requested to 

have vehicle diagnostic and 

checked in regard to its DPF and 

potential in cab monitoring 

during work activities.  

 

Vehicle was taken out of general 

use and Go Plant was requested 

to have full diagnostics 

performed by Lloyds.  

Findings were delivered to Parks 

& Open Spaces and a report 

completed by Occupational 

Health and Safety, manufacturer 

found no defaults but fumes are 

Page 19



 

still being reported in-cab.  

Page 20



 

9 

Health and Safety Monitoring Half Yearly Report Accident Report October 

2020 - December 2020 
 

Generated on: 09 February 2021 

 

 

 

 
 

Ref Date occurred Description of injury 

Description 

RIDDOR reportable? 

Description 

Department Description Team Description 

INC10804 14-Oct-2020 Lifting and handling injuries NO Waste Management & 

Enforcement 

Waste Services 

INC10805 28-Oct-2020 Struck by moving object NO Waste Management & 

Enforcement 

Waste Services 

INC10810 01-Nov-2020 Slip, trip, fall same level YES Waste Management & 

Enforcement 

Waste Services 

INC10811 03-Nov-2020 Slip, trip, fall same level NO Waste Management & Waste Services 

P
age 21



 

10 

Ref Date occurred Description of injury 

Description 

RIDDOR reportable? 

Description 

Department Description Team Description 

Enforcement 

INC10908 21-Nov-2020 Exposure to harmful 

substance 

NO Beacon Museum Beacon 

INC10958 07-Dec-2020 Slip, trip, fall same level NO Human Resources Human Resources 

INC10970 11-Nov-2020 Another kind of accident NO Waste Management & 

Enforcement 

Waste Services 

INC10972 08-Dec-2020 Another kind of accident NO Waste Management & 

Enforcement 

Waste Services 

 
  P

age 22



 

11 

 

Accident Reporting 

 

There were 8 accidents recorded on Pentana for Q2 one of those was 

logged as a RIDDOR report which is detailed below. 

 

 INC10810 – Slip trip on same level within the waste department 

resulting in over 7 days absent from work which results in a RIDDOR 

reportable event. Sick note received.  

 

RIDDOR report for INC10585 involved a slip trip on the same level on leaf 

litter during wet raining conditions. The accident was considered 

unavoidable and actions were reiteration of Operatives being more aware 

of their environment conditions while conducting work activities.  

 

Of the other accidents reported above the learning that is taken from the 

accidents was that Officers and Operatives are being made aware to 

approach tasks in a timely manner and to be mindful of their environments 

when conducting such tasks so as to avoid slips and trips. Operatives have 

been given training and tool box talks on the dangers of sharps and are 

provided with correct personal protective, cut resistant gloves as to avoid 

such instances and external public communications reiterate that items 

such as broken glass and other sharps are not to be disposed of in their 

general waste collection. 

 

Training and refresher training on the correct lifting and manual handling 

practices is offered to those who tackle cumbersome or heavy loads so to 

ensure lifting and handling injuries continue to decrease.   

 

With all RIDDORS and accidents at work that result in working time lost, 

Occupational Health and Safety works closely with Human Resources 

Officers and Occupational Health professionals to ensure that employees 

Page 23



 

12 

are correctly phased back into work to limit reassurance of injuries and to 

prevent further sickness and absences.  

 

COVID – 19 REPORTED ILLNESS 

 

Since first initial UK lock down there has been a UK wide tier system and 

two more additional lockdowns, Q2 has seen the third lockdown is 

expected to last until March 2021. Exposures, positive and negative cases 

are recorded and monitored in Human Resources (HR) as per the 

corporately agreed reporting procedure.  

 

In this period there were 2 positive cases recorded, 0 of which have been 
transmitted through workplace societal exposure. There have been 15 tests 
organised through HR none of which yielded a positive result. It must be 
noted that the HSE do not consider working with the general public – as 
opposed to work with people known to be infected – is not usually 
significant to trigger RIDDOR reporting and the subsequent two other 
requirements for COVID RIDDOR would be those working directly with the 
virus i.e. lab and pathology research workers and an accidental release has 
occurred and then the death of a worker as a result of occupational 
exposure to coronavirus again lab workers, Medical workers or social care 
workers.  

 

2.1.4 Communication and Consultation 

 

In line with the Councils aim of being Modern Progressive organisation we 

have achieved: 

 

1. The Health Safety Committee continues to meet on a monthly basis 
and a verbal H&S report is delivered at the monthly STTUG meeting 
of issues arising; 

2. Health Advocates and Mental Health First Aiders meet on a monthly 
basis and are working towards achieving the TUC Health at Work 
Award; 

Page 24



 

13 

3. Health and safety has a fully integrated SharePoint intranet site 
which offers information on health and safety, tool box talks, 
interactive Q&A and centralizes all health and safety related policies, 
procedures and guides. It also offers a central point for all risk 
assessments for all staff to access; 

4. Health and Safety has been integrated within the corporate helpdesk 
and employees can: 

o Report accidents 
o Report near miss 
o Organize desk assessments if anything has changed with their 

workstation set-up 
5. Further helpdesk requests are in development to allow individuals to 

upload inspection reports and various other health and safety service 
needs. 

6. Fire Warden and First aiders are all listed on the health and safety 
intranet and are updated in regards to any COVID-19 issues that may 
affect their role delivery, they are also provided with access to all site 
fire information to allow for greater flexibility for individuals.    

 
 
 
2.1.5 COVID -19 Update 
 

Health and Safety has continued to be a point of contact along with HR for 

matters relating to COVID. Working closely with Properties and Estates, 

Waste, Parks & Open Spaces and Environmental Health.   

 

Health and Safety updated regularly the Return to Work Policy working in 

partnership with Managers producing supportive materials such as; COVID 

visitor questionnaires, guides for visiting officers and updated COVID 

related risk assessments as UK legislation and information was released. 

 

Improved temperature checking devices were installed at main staff 

entrances that require no handling to minimise touch points and training 

was provided to Team Leaders and Managers to cascade down to 

Page 25



 

14 

Operational staff. Training videos and information was also made available 

on the new health and safety intranet.  

 

3. CONCLUSIONS 
 

 This period has identified areas for process improvement within 
departments such as The Beacon Museum, Parks and Open Spaces 
and updating of legacy systems for Grave digging.  

 A digital solution for online reporting has been a success and should 
only serve to improve how information is received and recorded to 
prevent further incidents. 

 We continue to comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 
and the many associated Regulations. 

 Areas development and process improvement as identified in the 

health and safety internal audit continues to be implemented with 

the main aim to achieve ISO 45001 and the TUC Bronze award status. 

 The role of the Health and Safety Committee and our Health and 

Safety Champions i.e., Heath Advocates, First Aiders, Mental First 

Aiders and Fire Wardens continue to assist in delivering an effective 

health, safety and welfare management system and are an invaluable 

asset.  

 We continue to update and improve risk assessment and their annual 

review across all departments and add additional risks to the central 

risk register. 

 We continue to provide advice on COVID-19 and still maintain a 

central point of information instruction and training.  

 
4.     STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS  
 
4.1 Legal and The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: No legal issues 

arise from within, or the noting of, this report. 
 
4.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: There are no resource 

implications arising from this recommendation. 
 

Page 26



 

15 

4.4 EIA Comments are: Health and Safety fully supports EIA principles. 
One of the main aims of Health and Safety is to provide a safe 
working environment for all staff, and to ensure that others are not 
put at risk by our activities. The Health and Safety Advisor role plays 
an essential role in identifying workplace and other adaptations that 
may be needed to support people to start, remain or return to work. 
 

5. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
5.1 The Council has a full time Occupational Health and Safety Officer 

within the Human Resources Team that works across all the 
Council’s sites and operations. Staff who are Health and Safety 
Committee members are released by their services to ensure active 
engagement across the organization. Training is also a key resource 
to ensure all staff are competent to carry out tasks within their roles 
in relation to Health and Safety.  

 
5.2 Occupational health is also a key resource within Health and Safety 

and works in partnership with Human Resources for Occupational 
Diseases, accidents at work and ensuring competent back to work 
medical advice for employees.  
Adaptations for staff identified during their desk assessments is also 
a budgetary requirement as this includes office furniture and aids to 
assist in protecting workers from the health risks of working with 
display equipment and is a legal requirement under the Health and 
Safety at work act.  

 
6.        HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE 

THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED? 
 
6.1 The Council manages operational risks through individual service 

delivery and management.  There is a corporate health and safety 
risk register that is overseen and updated by OHSA.  Actions and 
projects to mitigate risks will follow the Council’s performance and 
project frameworks. 

 

Page 27



 

16 

7. WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM 
THIS REPORT? 

 
7.1 Continued programme of updating all risk assessments within 

departments.  
 
7.2 Audit process improvement samples from pilot departments   

7.3 When CBC achieves the ISO 45001 the measurable scope will be: 

 Streamlined reporting facilities  

 Consistent inductions 

 Near miss and Accident reports on a digital helpdesk 

 Health and Safety Intranet  

List of Appendices  
 
Not Applicable 
 
List of Background Documents: 
 

Page 28



 

 
 

EXECUTIVE 18 FEBRUARY 2021 
 
CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE FOR QUARTER THREE OF 2020-21 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER:   Cllr David Moore 

LEAD OFFICER:  Sarah Pemberton,  
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy 
 

REPORT AUTHOR:  Gillian Butterworth,  
Performance and Risk Management Officer 
 

 
WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?   

The Executive is responsible for managing the resources of the Council and seeking to 

ensure that best value through continuous improvement is embedded throughout all of the 

Council’s business.  

 RECOMMENDATION:  

a) Note performance of Key Performance Indicators 

1.        INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 The Executive monitors achievement of the Council’s strategic ambitions and key 
performance targets through the Performance Management and Improvement 
Framework.  This report presents the outturn position of Key Performance Indicators 
at the end of Quarter three 2020/21.  

 
2.0 DETAILS 
 
2.1  Verified data was available for 21 out of 24 KPIs at the time of reporting.  Where a nil 
 return is recorded, quarter three data will be captured in the quarter four annual 
 summary report to the Executive. 
 
 At the end of Quarter three; 

 86% of KPIs had met their target (18 out of 21) 
 These can be grouped to show; 

 75% of ‘corporately owned’ KPIs met their target. (9 out of 12). 

 100 % of non-corporately owned’ KPIs met their target (9 out of 9) 

 71 % of KPIs performed equal to or better than the same quarter last year (15 
out of 21) 

 
2.2 Tables 1 and 2 show ‘at a glance’ which KPIs met their quarterly targets.  
 Full details are listed in Appendix A. 
  

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 

 
Table 1. Corporately owned KPIs 

 Performance Indicator 
Was 
Target 
Met? 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected  

KPI 10 Speed of processing - new HB claims  

KPI 11 Speed of processing - new CTR claims  

KPI 12 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims  

KPI 13 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims  

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases  

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse Project  

KPI 17 Percentage of Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale  

KPI 21 Percentage of 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks  

KPI 22 Percentage of planning 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks  

KPI 23 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks  

KPI 24 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed  

 
Table 2 Non- Corporately owned KPIs 

 Performance Indicator 
Was 
Target 
Met? 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council Tax collected  

KPI 2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use Nil 

KPI 3 Number of new homes approved  

KPI 4 Number of new homes built  

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT  

KPI 6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built  

KPI 7 External funding for Economic Development Secured  

KPI 9 Local people supported with employability and skills  

KPI 16 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one  

KPI 18 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting  Nil 

KPI 19 Residual Household Waste produced per household (kg) Nil 

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX payed using DDeb payment method  
 
2.3 For the three KPIs that did not meet their quarterly target, the following context is 
 offered, 

Page 30



 

 
 

 

 Speed of processing KPIs 
KPIs 11, 12 and 13 Speed of processing new Council Tax Reduction claims and 

changes of circumstances for HB and CTR claims all failed to meet the quarterly 

target.  The speed of processing claims has been impacted by an increase in the 

number of new claims and changes to universal credit notifications, additions to the 

statutory functions of the Benefits Team in response to the Covid Pandemic, 

including Test and Trace Payments and Council Tax Hardship Fund administration, 

and staff training and Christmas closure. 

  
3.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
3.1 Throughout the quarter, while mitigating the ongoing challenges of the Covid 19 
 pandemic, key corporate and operational activities were maintained and the 
 impacts on operational delivery were assessed by the Corporate Leadership Team 
 through the Performance Framework.    
 
3.2 Strategic and partnership activity continued and progress was reported to Full 
 Council on 15th December 2020 through the Mayors Executive Report.   
 
3.3 The 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy was agreed by Full Council on 15th December 
 2020 and work on the outline delivery plan has commenced. 
 
 
4.          STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS   
 
4.1 Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from this report 

4.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report provides a progress update to 
 the Executive on key deliverables arising from the Corporate Strategy. Any legal 
 issues arising from any individual key deliverables will be dealt with as appropriate.  
 
4.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report 

 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2020/21 Budget and Capital Plan 

 underpins the Corporate Strategy 

4.4 EIA Comments:  The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which 

 performance is measured have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.   Individual 

 projects and partnership delivery against the Corporate Delivery Plan are subject  to 

 provide EIAs. 

4.5 Policy Framework:  Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set  down in 

 the Council’s Constitution. This report directly reports on the delivery of the 

 Corporate Strategy and associated documents. 

Page 31



 

 
 

5.   APPENDICIES   Appendix A – KPI Report for Q3 of 2020/21 
 

 

Page 32



1 

Quarterly KPI Report for Quarter Three of 2020/21             Appendix A
 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council 
Tax collected 

82.88% 71.37% 11.51%  

 
Compared to 83.95 

% in the same 
quarter last year 

 98% collected 

KPI 2 Number empty homes 
<6months brought back into 
use 

     

Quarter 3 data was unavailable at the 
time of reporting. 
 
Overall a total of 42 homes have been 
brought back into use in quarters 1 
and 2 of 2020/21.   

80 empty 
homes 

KPI 3 Number of new homes 
approved 

45 homes 
approved 

 
50 -5  

 
Compared to 27 new 
homes approved in 

Q3 last year 

45 new homes were approved in Q3.  
  
Against the annual target of 200 new 
homes approved, the cumulative 
figure of 180 at the end of Q3 shows 
that the PI on target for the year. 
  
 By comparison a cumulative total of 
153 new homes had been approved 
by the end of quarter there last year. 

200 homes 

KPI 4 Number of new homes 
built 

37 new 
homes built  

35 2  

 
Compared to 50 new 

homes built in the 
same quarter last 

Against an annual target of 140 
homes, the cumulative total of 108 
for the year to date shows that the PI 
is on target for the year.  By 

140 homes 

P
age 33



2 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

year. comparison 136 new homes had been 
built by the end of Q3 last year. 

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE 
homes BUILT 

0 3.5 -3.5  

 
Compared to 0 in 
the same quarter 

last year 

Although there were no affordable 
homes were built in Q3, there were a 
total of 34 built across Q1 and Q2 of 
2020/21, this exceeds the overall 
annual target of 14 (10% of affordable 
homes approved). 

14 homes 

KPI 6 Number of larger family 
and aspirational homes built 

27 5 22  

 
Compared to 21 in 
the same quarter 
last year. 

Total of 57 aspirational home have 
been built in the year to date 

21 homes 

KPI 7 External funding for 
Economic Development 
Secured 

£0.00 £125000 -£125000   

No new external funding secured in 
Q3, however the cumulative total for 
funding secured in the year to date is 
£2056649.00 which already exceeds 
the annual target by £1,556,649.00 

£500000.00 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-
domestic Rates Collected 

95.20% 74.70% 20.50%  
 

Compared to 94.37 
last year 

 
99.6% 

collected 

KPI 9 Local people supported 
with employability and skills 

28 15 13  
 

Compared to 20 in 
Q3 last year 

Sector Development x 5 
Wage subsidy x 6 
Employability Fund x 12 
Bespoke Support x 2 
NVQ X 3 

65 people 

P
age 34



3 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

KPI 10 Speed of processing - 
new HB claims 

14 18 3  

 
Compared to 8.8 
days in the same 
quarter last year 

 18 days 

KPI 11 Speed of processing - 
new CTR claims 

30.91 18 12.91  

 
Compared to 13 
days in the same 
quarter last year 

The speed of processing claims has 
been impacted by an increase in the 
number of new claims and changes to 
universal credit notifications, 
additions to the statutory functions of 
the Benefits Team in response to the 
Covid Pandemic, including Test and 
Trace Payments and Council Tax 
Hardship Fund administration, staff 
training and Christmas closure. 

18 days 

KPI 12 Speed of processing - 
changes of circumstances for 
HB claims 

13.25 10 3.25  

 
Compared to  5.3 
days in the same 
quarter last year 

10 days 

KPI 13 Speed of processing - 
changes of circumstances for 
CTR claims 

18.62 10 8.62  

 
Compared to  5.4 
days in the same 
quarter last year 

10 days 

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases 94% 90% 4%   29 of 31 cases within 56 days 
90% 

Resolved in 
timeframe 

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse 
Project 

100% 90% 10%    
90% 

satisfaction 

KPI 16 Percentage of 
complaints resolved at stage 
one 

93.00% 90.00% 3.00%   

85 Complaints opened 
77 Stage 1 
6 Stage 2 and 2 Stage 3 

90.00% 
Resolved at 

stage 1 

P
age 35



4 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

KPI 17 Percentage of FOI 
requests resolved within 
timescale 

84.95% 95.00% -10.05%   

195 FOIs opened 
187 Closed within timeframe 
 

90.00% 
Resolved in 
timeframe 

KPI 18 Percentage of 
household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling and 
composting   

     
Q3 figures unavailable at time of 
reporting.  Verified figures for Q2 
were 41.25% based on actual data 

37.00% 

KPI 19 Residual Household 
Waste produced per 
household (kg) 

     
Q3 figures unavailable at time of 
reporting.  Verified figures for Q2 
were 127.81 based on actual data 

100 kg 

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX 
payed using DDeb payment  

62.67% 60% 2.67%    60% 

KPI 21 Percentage of 'major' 
planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks 

100.00% 65.00% 35.00%    65.00% 

KPI 22 Percentage of planning 
'minor' planning applications 
determined within 8 weeks 

95.50% 80.00% 15.50%    80.00% 

KPI 23 Percentage of 'other' 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks 

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%    80.00% 

KPI 24 Percentage of planning 
appeals dismissed 

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%    80.00% 

 

P
age 36


	Agenda
	2 Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 26 January 2021
	6 Forward Plan
	7 Health and Safety Half-Yearly Report
	8 Corporate Performance Update for Quarter 3 of 2020-21
	Appendix A - KPI Report for Q3 of 2020-21 (Exec)


